(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

# Annual Financial Report



(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

#### **TABLE OF CONTENTS**

	<b>PAGE</b>
FINANCIAL SECTION	
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT	i-iii
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS	1-5
BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:	
Government-wide Financial Statements:	
Statement of Net Position	7
Statement of Activities	8
Governmental Fund Financial Statements:	
Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	9
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds	
to the Statement of Net Position	10
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances -	
Governmental Funds	11
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes	10
in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities	12
Notes To The Basic Financial Statements	13-19
REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:	
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Urban Renewal Project Fund	21
SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION:	
Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual	
Urban Renewal Project Fund	23
REPORT ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS	
Indpendent Auditor's Report Required by Oregon State Regulations	25

### SISTERS URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY (A COMPONENT UNIT OF THE CITY OF SISTERS, OREGON)

P.O. Box 39 Sisters, OR 97759 (541)323-5222

#### Fiscal Year 2021-22

#### **AGENCY OFFICIALS**

MICHAEL PREEDIN Agency Chair

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

NANCY CONNOLLY Agency Member

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

JENNIFER LETZ Agency Member

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

GARY ROSS Agency Member

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

ANDREA BLUM Agency Member

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

#### **ADMINISTRATION**

JOSEPH O'NEILL Finance Director

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

JORDAN WHEELER City Manager

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759

KERRY PROSSER Assistant City Manager

PO BOX 39, SISTERS, OR 97759



#### **INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT**

To the Board of Directors Sisters Urban Renewal Agency Sisters, Oregon

#### **Opinions**

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities and each major fund of Sisters Urban Renewal Agency (a component unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective financial position of the governmental activities and each major fund, of the Sisters Urban renewal Agency (a component unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon), as of June 30, 2023, and the respective changes in financial position and the budgetary comparison for the Urban Renewal Project Fund for the year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### **Basis for Opinions**

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be independent of the of Sisters Urban Renewal Agency, and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

#### Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency's, ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

#### Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards, we:

- Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
- Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
- Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
  appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
  Sisters Urban Renewal Agency's, internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.
- Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the financial statements.
- Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related matters that we identified during the audit.

#### **Required Supplemental Information**

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's discussion and analysis and schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial statements is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context.

We have applied certain limited procedures to the management's discussion and analysis in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted principally of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements. The schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals are the responsibility of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the schedules of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balances – budget and actuals are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a whole.

#### **Supplementary Information**

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the Agency's basic financial statements. The supplementary information is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Agency.

The supplementary information is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain other procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the supplementary information is fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the financial statements taken as a whole.

#### Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

In accordance with the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, we have issued our report dated February 14, 2024, on our consideration of the Agency's compliance with certain provisions of laws and regulations, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of compliance and the results of that testing and not to provide an opinion on the Agency's compliance.

Steve Tuchscherer, CPA

Umpqua Valley Financial, LLC

Roseburg, Oregon February 14, 2024

# MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

## Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

The Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) section of the Agency of Sisters Urban Renewal Agency (Agency) financial statements presents a narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

#### OVERVIEW OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The following discussion and analysis is offered to serve as an introduction to the Agency's basic financial statements which include three components:

- 1. Government-wide financial statements;
- 2. Fund financial statements; and
- 3. Notes to the financial statements.

This report also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements themselves.

Government-wide Financial Statements. The government-wide financial statements are designed to provide readers with a broad overview of the Agency's finances, in a manner that is similar to a private-sector business. These statements are reported on the full accrual basis of accounting. Under the full accrual basis, revenues and expenses are reported in the year earned or obligated.

The *statement of net position* presents information of the Agency's assets and liabilities, with the difference between the two reported as net position. Evaluating increases or decreases in net position over time can serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of the Agency is improving or deteriorating.

The statement of activities presents information on how the Agency's net position has changed during the fiscal year. All changes in net position are reported as soon as the underlying event occurs, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Revenues and expenses are reported in the statement for some items that will result in cash flows in a future period. An example of this is earned, but uncollected property taxes.

Both of the government-wide statements distinguish functions of the Agency that are principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, referred to as governmental activities. The Agency does not have other business-type activities.

**Fund Financial Statements.** A fund is a grouping of related accounts that is used to maintain control over resources that have been segregated for specific activities or functions. The Agency, like other state and local governments, uses fund accounting to demonstrate compliance with legal requirements. All of the funds of the Agency are considered governmental funds.

Governmental Funds are used to account for Agency functions that are supported primarily by taxes and intergovernmental revenues. Governmental fund financial statements focus on the inflows and outflows of spendable resources, as well as available resources at the end of the fiscal year. Such information is useful in evaluating a government's near-term requirements.

Because the focus of government funds is narrower than that of the government-wide financial statements, it is useful to compare the information presented for governmental funds with similar information presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-term financial decisions. Both the Balance Sheet and the Statement of Revenues,

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances includes a reconciliation to facilitate the comparison between the governmental fund statements and governmental activities.

The Agency maintains two individual governmental funds, the Urban Renewal Project Fund and Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund. Information is presented separately in the governmental fund balance sheet and in the governmental fund statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance.

The Agency adopts an annual appropriated budget for both funds. A budgetary comparison has been provided for each fund to demonstrate compliance with the adopted budget.

*Notes to the Basic Financial Statements*. The notes provide additional information that is essential for a full understanding of the data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements.

*Other Information*. In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also presents supplementary information including budgetary to actual comparisons for the Agency's two funds.

#### **GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS**

#### **Statement of Net Position:**

The following table reflects a summary of Net Position compared to prior fiscal year.

#### **Summary of Net Position**

	Governmental Activities			
	2023	2022		
Assets				
Current and Other Assets	\$ 456,447	\$ 312,166		
Total Assets	456,447	312,166		
Net Position				
Restricted	456,447	312,166		
Total Net Position	\$ 456,447	\$ 312,166		

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### **Statement of Activities:**

The following table compares revenues and expenses for the government activities.

#### **Summary of Changes in Net Position**

	Governmental Activities		
	2022-23 2021-		
Revenues			
General Revenues			
Taxes and Assessments	\$ 439,981	\$ 405,428	
Interest & Investment Earnings	17,297	4,604	
Other Revenue	1,432	63	
Total General Revenues	458,710	410,095	
Total Revenues	458,710	410,095	
Program Expenses			
Community Development	314,429	650,746	
Interest on Long-Term Debt		5,369	
Total Expenses	314,429	656,115	
Change in Net Position	144,281	(246,020)	
Net Position, July 1	312,166	558,186	
Net Position, June 30	\$ 456,447	\$ 312,166	

#### FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

The *Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund* accounts for the accumulation of resources and payments for long-term debt related to the Urban Renewal Plan. Tax increment revenues are deposited to the debt service fund. Consistent with state law, the tax revenues are used to leverage debt proceeds, which are placed in the project fund for project construction.

The *Urban Renewal Project Fund* accounts for the accumulation of resources and payments for the project construction costs related to the Urban Renewal Plan.

The Agency's net position increased by \$144,281 during the fiscal year primarily due to an increase in cash and investments.

As of the end of the current fiscal year, the Agency's funds reported combined ending fund balance of \$449,496 for future spending, of which all of the balance is restricted for Urban Renewal Projects.

#### **BUDGETARY HIGHLIGHTS**

The Project Fund explored remaining obligations for rehabilitation grants and evaluated an appropriate method to utilize the existing fund balance. The project fund also embarked on the design for street improvement to Adams Avenue.

#### CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital assets. The Agency's investment in capital assets for June 30, 2023 is zero.

Long-term debt. The Agency carries no long-term debt as of June 30, 2023.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### ECONOMIC FACTORS AND NEXT YEAR'S BUDGET

After a relatively dormant period for the five years prior to 2020, the Urban Renewal Agency (URA) has since experienced a high degree of activity. With the update of the URA Plan in 2020 and the revised URA project list in January 2022, the URA has developed a roadmap to undertake projects pursuant to the URA goals.

A necessary step to strategize the undertaking of items in the project list is the analysis of funding strategies to complete those projects. Due to the update of the water utility and wastewater utility master plans, it is likely that funding options related to those master plan projects will need to be explored. Staff determined it would be beneficial, in the short term, to use cash on hand for URA projects commencing relatively soon. Staff would then look at potentially coupling the URA and the City's financing strategies which could attract a more beneficial rate and return compared to a standalone URA financing strategy.

As the City of Sisters utility master plans are adopted and a project list, accompanied with a timeline, becomes available, it will drive the decision to either couple URA funding strategies with the City of Sisters or pursue funding strategies as a stand-alone entity. The staff has worked behind the scenes on the due diligence for URA funding, and whatever option the URA decides to pursue will be able to be done in a timely manner.

The URA and its resources have the ability to steward goals through the strategic proportions of project costs. It is incumbent upon the staff and the URA to maximize the potential for the agency and the project list going forward.

The total appropriated budget for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2024 is \$1,279,983. Of this total \$779,983 is appropriated for the Urban Renewal Project Fund activity. The Unappropriated amount is \$113,579.

#### REQUESTS FOR INFORMATION

The Agency's financial statements are designed to provide readers with a general overview of the Agency's finances. For questions about the report or additional information, contact the City of Sisters' Finance Officer, at City of Sisters, P.O. Box 39, Sisters, Oregon 97759 or visit the City's website at <a href="https://www.ci.sisters.or.us">www.ci.sisters.or.us</a>.

### BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

	Governmental Activities
ASSETS:	
Current Assets:	
Cash and Investments	448,085
Property Taxes Receivable	8,362
<b>Total Assets</b>	\$ 456,447
NET POSITION:	
Restricted for:	
Urban Renewal Projects	456,447
<b>Total Net Position</b>	\$ 456,447

(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

		Program	Revenues		Net
Functions / Programs	(Expenses)	Charges for Services	Operating Grants and Contributions	Capital Grants and Contributions	(Expense) Revenue and Change in Net Position
<b>GOVERNMENTAL ACTIVITIES:</b>					
Community Development	\$ 314,429	\$ -	\$ -	\$ -	\$ (314,429)
<b>Total Governmental Activities</b>	\$ 314,429	\$ -	<u> </u>	\$ -	\$ (314,429)
	Taxes:	VENUES:	Deht Service		439,981
		vestment Earning			17,297
	Other Revenue	•	5		1,432
	Subtotal - Gene	eral Revenues			458,710
	Change in Net	Position			144,281
	Net Position, Ju	uly 1, 2022			312,166
	Net Position,	June 30, 2023			\$ 456,447

(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### BALANCE SHEET GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

	Urban Renewal Project Fund		Urban Renewal bt Service Fund	Totals
ASSETS:			_	
Cash and Investments	\$ 285,092	\$	162,993	\$ 448,085
Property Taxes Receivable	 		8,362	 8,362
<b>Total Assets</b>	\$ 285,092	\$	171,355	\$ 456,447
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES:  Deferred Inflows of Resources:  Deliquent Property Tax Revenue Not Available			6,951	6,951
<b>Total Deferred Inflows of Resources</b>			6,951	 6,951
Fund Balances:				
Restricted for:				
Urban Renewal Projects	285,092		164,404	 449,496
<b>Total Fund Balances</b>	285,092	_	164,404	449,496
Total Deferred Inflows of Resources & Fund Balances	\$ 285,092	\$	171,355	\$ 456,447

(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

### RECONCILIATION OF THE BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds	\$ 449,496
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Net Position are different because:	
Property taxes receivables not collected within 60 days of the	
current period ending date are deferred in the governmental funds.	 6,951
Net Position of Governmental Activities	\$ 456,447

### (A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon) Statement of Revenues,

#### **Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance**

	Urban Renewal Project Fund	Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund	Totals
REVENUES:			
Taxes and Assessments	\$ -	\$ 439,065	\$ 439,065
Interest and Investment Earnings	966	16,331	17,297
Miscellaneous		1,432	1,432
<b>Total Revenues</b>	966	456,828	457,794
EXPENDITURES:			
Current Operating:			
General Government	545	-	545
Capital Outlay	313,884		313,884
<b>Total Expenditures</b>	314,429		314,429
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues Over Expenditures	(313,463)	456,828	143,365
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES):			
Interfund Transfers In	600,000	-	600,000
Interfund Transfers (Out)		(600,000)	(600,000)
<b>Total Other Financing sources (uses)</b>	600,000	(600,000)	
Net Change in Fund Balance	286,537	(143,172)	143,365
Fund Balance - July 1, 2022	(1,445)	307,576	306,131
Fund Balance - June 30, 2023	\$ 285,092	\$ 164,404	\$ 449,496

(A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

# RECONCILIATION OF THE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES

For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023

Net changes in fund balances - total governmental funds

\$ 143,365

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the Statement of Activities are different because:

Some revenues will not be collected for several months after the City's fiscal year end and are therefore not considered "available" revenues in the governmental funds, instead these funds are shown as deferred revenue. However, these funds are recorded as revenue in the Statement of Activities.

The changes in amounts deferred are as follows:

Property Taxes

916

Change in net position of governmental activities

\$ 144,281

# NOTES TO THE BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### I. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

#### **Organization**

The Sisters Urban Renewal Agency (the Agency), a component unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon, is the urban renewal agency of, and controlled by, the City of Sisters (the City). It was established on July 24, 2003 to assist in the redevelopment of blighted and deteriorated areas within the City through tax increment financing. The governing body consists of a five member advisory committee, which makes its recommendations to the Board of Directors. The Board of Directors is composed of the Mayor and City Council of the City of Sisters.

#### Inclusion of the Agency in Sisters, Oregon, Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

All significant activities and organizations for which the City exercises oversight responsibility have been included in the City's combined financial statements. The following criteria from Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement No. 14, "The Financial Reporting Entity" as amended by GASB Statement No. 34 and 61, regarding manifestation of oversight were considered by the City in its evaluation of City organizations and activities:

- Financial interdependency the City provides a financial benefit or burden relationship to the organization.
- Authoritative appointment of governing authority Sisters City Council is the organization's governing authority.

City management has determined that the Agency meets the criteria set forth above, and, therefore, is a component unit of the City. This report is issued solely to meet a State of Oregon, Department of Revenue interpretation of Oregon Revised Statues that requires a separate audit report.

#### **Agency-wide and Fund Financial Statements**

The agency-wide financial statements (i.e., the Statement of Net Position and the Statement of Activities) report information on all activities of the Agency. For the most part, the effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. *Governmental activities* are supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues.

The Statement of Activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function or segment are offset by program revenues. *Direct expenses* are those that are clearly identifiable with a specific function or segment. *Program revenues* include: 1) charges to customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as *general revenues*. Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

#### Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Basis of Presentation

The agency-wide financial statements are reported using the *economic resources measurement focus* and the *accrual basis of accounting*. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental Funds are funded by a variety of resources, which include Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned sources. Unless specifically tracked, expenditures are assumed to begin with Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and lastly, Unassigned.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. For this purpose, the government considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 30 days of the end of the current fiscal period. Significant revenues, which are susceptible to accrual under the modified accrual basis of accounting, include property taxes and federal and state grants. Other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available when received by the Agency. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to claims and judgment, are recorded only when payment is due.

The Agency reports the following major governmental funds:

The *Project Fund* is the Agency's primary operation fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the Agency, which could be restricted, committed, or assigned, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. Principal sources of revenue are Bond/Loan Proceeds. Expenditures are primarily for construction projects related to the downtown core area of the Urban Renewal District.

The *Debt Service* fund accounts for the financial resources that are restricted, committed, or assigned to expenditures for repayment of principal and interest on long- term obligations used to finance construction projects related to the downtown core area of the Urban Renewal District. The principal source of revenue is Urban Renewal Tax collections.

#### **Use of Estimates**

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect certain reported amounts and disclosures. Accordingly, actual results could differ from those estimates.

#### **Cash and Cash Equivalents**

The Agency's cash and cash equivalents are considered to be cash on hand, demand deposits and short-term investments with original maturities of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

The Agency's bank accounts and investments are maintained in a central pool of cash and investments with the City of Sisters that is available for use by all funds. Each fund's portion of this pool is reported on the combined balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents.

The investment policy of the Agency is to invest in the Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP), U.S. Government Obligations, and interest bearing demand deposits with local banks and to transfer resources to the general checking account as the need arises. This policy is in accordance with ORS 294.035, which specifies the types of investments, authorized for municipal corporations. The Agency allocates earnings on investments to each fund based on the average monthly balances throughout the year.

Investments in the LGIP are reported at amortized cost, which approximates fair value in accordance with GASB Statement Number 31, and are considered cash equivalents for financial reporting purposes. All other investments are reported at fair value.

#### **Receivables and Payables**

Receivables including property taxes, accounts, entitlements, and shared revenues are reported in accordance with the policies indicated above.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### **Fund Equity**

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for amounts that met the definition of GASB 54: Nonspendable, Restricted, Committed, Assigned, and Unassigned.

In the fund financial statements, the fund balance for governmental funds is reported in classifications that comprise a hierarchy based primarily on the extent to which the government is bound to honor constraints on the specific purposes for which amounts in those funds can be spent.

Fund balance is reported as nonspendable when the resources cannot be spent because they are either in a nonspendable form or legally or contractually required to be maintained intact. Nonspendable items are not expected to be converted to cash and include inventories and prepaid amounts.

Fund balance is reported as restricted when the constraints placed on the use of resources are either: (a) externally imposed by creditors (such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors, or laws or regulations of other governments; or (b) imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation.

Fund balance is reported as committed when the Board passes a resolution that places specific constraints on how the resources may be used. The Board can modify or rescind the resolution at any time through passage of an additional resolution.

Fund balance is reported as assigned when resources are constrained by the government's intent to use them for a specific purpose, but are neither restricted nor committed. Intent is expressed when the Board approves which resources should be assigned to expenditures of particular purposes during the adoption of the annual budget. The City Manager uses that information to determine whether those resources should be classified as assigned or unassigned for presentation in the Agency's fund financial statements.

Unassigned fund balance is the residual classification for the General Fund. This classification represents fund balance that has not been restricted, committed, or assigned.

#### **Long-Term Obligation**

In the agency-wide financial statements, long-term debt obligations are reported as liabilities in the Statement of Net Position.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types report the face amount of debt issued as other financing sources.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### II. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

#### **Budgetary Information**

Generally, Oregon Local Budget Law requires annual budgets be adopted for all funds. The modified accrual basis of accounting is used for all budgets, except Oregon Budget Law requires the repayment of interfund loans in a subsequent year to be budgeted. All annual appropriations lapse at fiscal year-end.

The Agency begins its budgeting process by appointing Budget Committee members in the fall of each year. Budget recommendations are developed by management through early spring, with the Budget Committee meeting and approving the budget document in late spring. Public notices of the budget hearing are generally published in May or June and the hearing is held in June. The Board of Directors adopts the budget, makes appropriations, and declares the tax levy no later than June 30. Expenditure appropriations may not be legally over-expended, except in the case of grant receipts and bond sale proceeds which could not be reasonably estimated at the time the budget was adopted.

The resolution authorizing appropriations for each fund sets the level at which expenditures cannot legally exceed appropriations. The Agency established the levels of budgetary control at the materials and services, capital outlay, debt service, and all other requirement levels for all funds.

Unexpected additional resources may be added to the budget and appropriated for expenditure by using a supplemental budget. The supplemental budget process requires a hearing before the public, publication in the newspaper, and approval by the Board. Oregon Local Budget Law also provides certain specific exceptions to the supplemental budget process to increase appropriations. Management must obtain Board authorization for all appropriation transfers and supplementary budgetary appropriations.

Appropriations are limited to a single fiscal year; therefore, all spending authority of the Agency lapses as of year-end.

#### III. DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS

#### **Deposits and Investments**

**Deposits**. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board has adopted accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP), which includes standards to categorize deposits to give an indication of the level of custodial credit risk assumed by the Agency at June 30, 2023. If bank deposits at year end are not entirely insured or collateralized with securities held by the district or by its agent in the Agency's name, the Agency must disclose the custodial credit risk that exists.

The Agency maintains a cash pool with the City of Sisters that is available for use by all funds. Each fund type's portion of this pool is reported on the combined balance sheet as cash and cash equivalents. Please refer to the City's basic financial statements, issued under a separate cover, for additional information pertaining to the nature and collateralization of the City's deposits and investments.

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, a government's deposits may not be returned to it. The Agency does not have a formal policy for custodial credit risk.

As of June 30, 2023, the reported amount of the City's deposits was \$448,084. Of the \$448,084 bank balance, the entire amount was insured by the FDIC or covered by the collateral held in a multiple financial institutions collateral pool administered by the Oregon State Treasurer.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### Investments.

In connection with their shared funds with the City of Sisters, the Agency has invested funds in the State Treasurer's Oregon Short-Term Fund Local Government Investment Pool during the year. The Oregon Short-Term Fund is the local government investment pool for local governments and was established by the State Treasurer. It was created to meet the administrative responsibilities of federal arbitrage regulations. The investments are regulated by the Oregon Short-Term Fund Board and approved by the Oregon Investment Council (ORS 294.805 to 294.895). Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP) is an unrated external investment pool managed by the State Treasurer's office, which allows governments within the state to pool their funds for investment purposes. The amounts invested in the pool are not classified by risk categories because they are not evidenced by securities that exist in physical or book entry form as defined by GASB Statement No. 40. In addition, the Oregon State Treasury LGIP distributes investment income on an amortized cost basis and the participant's equity in the pool is determined by the amount of participant deposits, adjusted for withdrawals and distributed income. Accordingly, the adjustment to fair value would not represent an expendable increase in the Agency's cash position.

Investments in the Oregon State Treasury LGIP are made under the provision of ORS 194.180. These funds are held in the Agency's name and are not subject to collateralization requirements or ORS 295.015. Investments are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.

Credit risk. State statutes authorize the Agency to invest primarily in general obligations of the US Government and its agencies, certain bonded obligations of Oregon municipalities, bank repurchase agreements, bankers' acceptances, certain commercial papers, and the State Treasurer's investment pool, among others. The Agency has no formal investment policy that further restricts its investment choices.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The Agency is required to provide information about the concentration of credit risk associated with its investments in one issuer that represents 5 percent or more of the total investments, excluding investments in external investment pools or those issued and explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government. The Agency has no such investments.

Interest Rate Risk. The Agency has no formal investment policy that explicitly limits investment maturities as a means of managing its exposure to fair value loss arising from increasing interest rates.

#### Receivables

On June 30, 2023, the Agency's receivables are as follows:

Property taxes \$ 8,362

Total receivables \$ 8,362

Property taxes are assessed and attach as an enforceable lien on property as of July 1. Taxes are levied on July 1 and are payable on November 15. They may be paid in installments due November 15, February 15, and May 15. Taxes are billed and collected by Deschutes County and remittance to the Agency is made at periodic intervals. The Agency levied taxes at its maximum taxing authority.

#### **Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources**

In addition to liabilities, the statement of financial position and or balance sheet will sometimes report a separate section for deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The government has only one type of item, which arises only under a modified accrual basis of accounting that qualifies for reporting in this category. Accordingly, the item unavailable revenue is reported only in the governmental fund balance sheet. The amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources in the period that the amounts become available. The unavailable revenues reported in the governmental funds included \$6,035 in property taxes.

(A component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Notes to the Basic Financial Statements For the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2023 Unaudited

#### **Fund Balance**

Restricted Fund Balance represents amounts that are constrained for Urban Renewal capital projects and the Urban Renewal Debt Service Fund. Generally the purpose for each is indicated by the account title on the face of the balance sheet.

When the option is available to use restricted or unrestricted resources for any purpose, the Agency expends restricted resources first. When the option is available to use committed, assigned, or unassigned resources for any purpose, the Agency expends committed resources before assigned resources, and assigned resources before unassigned resources. Fund balance by classification for the year ended June 30, 2023, is as follows:

Fund Balance	URA Project Fund	<b>URA Debt Service Fund</b>
Restricted For:		
Urban Renewal Project	s: \$285,092	<u>\$164,404</u>
Total Fund Balance	<u>\$285,092</u>	<u>\$164,404</u>

#### **Capital Assets**

The Agency constructs and refurbishes assets for the benefit of the City and businesses in the local area, and any assets constructed or improved would be property of the benefiting entity. During the current year the Agency incurred \$313,884 in Capital Outlay related to city projects. The Agency had no capital assets at year end.

#### Long - Term Obligations

As of June 30, 2023, the Agency had no long-term obligations.

#### **Risk Management**

The Agency is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft or damage to and destruction of assets; errors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Agency carries commercial insurance coverage in the name of the City. There have been no significant reductions in coverage from the prior year and settlements have not exceeded coverage for the past three years.

#### **Construction in Progress**

In the Urban Renewal Project fund there are no construction in progress ongoing as of June 30, 2023.

#### **Commitments and Contingencies**

No significant commitments and contingencies at June 30, 2022.

#### **Subsequent Events**

No significant subsequent events occurred after fiscal year-end through the date of issuance of financial statements.

# REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

#### (A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

# Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual URBAN RENEWAL PROJECT FUND

		d Amounts	Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis)	Variance with Final Budget Positive
	Original	Final	(See Note 1)	(Negative)
REVENUES:				
Investment Revenue	\$ 200	\$ 200	\$ 966	\$ 766
<b>Total Revenues</b>	200	200	966	766
EXPENDITURES:				
Materials and Services	4,500	4,500	545	(3,955)
Capital Outlay		313,884	313,884	
<b>Total Expenditures</b>	4,500	318,384	314,429	(3,955)
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	(4,300)	(318,184)	(313,463)	4,721
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):				
Interfund Loan Proceeds In			600,000	600,000
<b>Total Other Financing Sources</b>			600,000	600,000
Net Change In Fund Balances	(4,300)	(318,184)	286,537	604,721
Fund Balance - July 1, 2022	151,248	151,248	(1,445)	(152,693)
Fund Balance - June 30, 2023	\$ 146,948	\$ (166,936)	\$ 285,092	\$ 452,028

### **SUPPLEMENTAL INFORMATION**



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

#### (A Component Unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

#### Schedule of Revenues, Expenditures,

### and Changes in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual URBAN RENEWAL DEBT SERVICE FUND

	Budgeted	Amounts	Actual Amounts (Budgetary Basis)	Variance with Final Budget Positive
	Original	Final	(See Note 1)	(Negative)
REVENUES:				·
Property Tax Revenue	\$ 418,500	\$ 418,500	\$ 439,065	\$ 20,565
Investment Revenue	200	200	16,331	16,131
Miscellaneous Revenue			1,432	1,432
<b>Total Revenues</b>	418,700	418,700	456,828	38,128
EXPENDITURES:				
Debt Service				
Principal	-	-	-	-
Interest				
<b>Total Expenditures</b>				
Excess of Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures	418,700	418,700	456,828	38,128
OTHER FINANCING SOURCES / (USES):				
Interfund Loans (Out)		(600,000)	(600,000)	
<b>Total Other Financing Sources</b>		(600,000)	(600,000)	
Net Change In Fund Balances	418,700	(181,300)	(143,172)	38,128
Fund Balance - July 1, 2022	151,248	151,248	307,576	156,328
Fund Balance - June 30, 2023	\$ 569,948	\$ (30,052)	\$ 164,404	\$ 194,456

# REPORT ON LEGAL AND OTHER REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS



Sisters Urban Renewal Agency

(A component unit of the City of Sisters, Oregon)

### INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT REQUIRED BY OREGON STATE REGULATIONS

As of June 30, 2023

To the Governing Body of the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency Sisters, Oregon

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency (a component unit of the City of Sisters) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2023 and have issued our report thereon dated February 14, 2024. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America.

#### Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency's financial statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statements amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

We performed procedures to the extent we considered necessary to address the required comments and disclosures which included, but were not limited to the following:

- Deposit of public funds with financial institutions (ORS Chapter 295).
- Indebtedness limitations, restrictions and repayment.
- Budgets legally required (ORS Chapter 294).
- Insurance and fidelity bonds in force or required by law.
- Programs funded from outside sources.
- Authorized investment of surplus funds (ORS Chapter 294).
- Public contracts and purchasing (ORS Chapters 279A, 279B, 279C).

In connection with our testing nothing came to our attention that caused us to believe the Agency was not in substantial compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants, including the provisions of Oregon Revised Statutes as specified in Oregon Administrative Rules 162-10-000 through 162-10-320 of the Minimum Standards for Audits of Oregon Municipal Corporations.

#### OAR 162-10-0230 Internal Control

In planning and performing my audit, we considered the Agency's internal control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Agency's internal control over financial reporting.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of the Board of Directors and management of the Sisters Urban Renewal Agency and the Oregon Secretary of State and is not intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these parties.

Steve Tuchscherer, CPA Umpqua Valley Financial Roseburg, Oregon

Wille

February 14, 2024